
 
 

Town of Mint Hill 
 

John M. McEwen Assembly Room 
4430 Mint Hill Village Lane 

Mint Hill, North Carolina 28227 
 

Mint Hill Planning Board Agenda 
October 21, 2019 at 6:30 p.m. 

 
 

1. Call To Order 
 

2. Roll Call and Invocation 
 

3. Approve Minutes of September 16, 2019 Regular Meeting 
 

4. Additions or Deletions of Agenda Items 
 

5. Reports of Committees, Members, and Staff 
 

6. Old Business 
 

7. New Business 
 

A. Discussion and Decision on S19-18 Brighton Park Subdivision revision, Filed by Mint Hill 
Partners, LLC, Parcel Numbers 135-271-83 and 137-275-29 to allow the addition of fourteen 
(14) lots. 

 
B. Discussion and Recommendation on #ZC19-4 Filed by SGH Mint Hill, LLC, Parcel Number 

197-012-08, Located at 7404 Matthews-Mint Hill Road, to allow a Conditional Zoning Request 
for a Restaurant with a Drive Through:  

 
C. Discussion and Recommendation on #ZC19-5 Filed by Woodie Enterprises/Brad Woodie, Parcel 

Number 109-331-07, Located at 9107 Lawyers Road, to allow a Conditional Zoning Request for 
an Automotive Repair Shop. 

 
D. Discussion and Recommendation on #ZC19-6 Filed by Albemarle Road Associates, LLC, Parcel 

Numbers 137-151-25, 137-151-27, 137-152-11, 137-152-54, 137-152-13, 137-152-18, 137-152-
12, 137-152-01 to amend the Conditions at Clear Creek Business Park. 

 
8. Other Business 

 
9. Adjournment  



 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
Cassie Crutchfield 

Program Support Assistant 



MINUTES OF THE MINT HILL PLANNING BOARD MEETING  

SEPTEMBER 16, 2019  

  

The Mint Hill Planning Board met in a regular session on Monday, September 16, 2019 at 6:30 

p.m. in the John M. McEwen Assembly Room, Mint Hill Town Hall.  

  

ATTENDANCE  

Chairman: Tony Long  

Members: Brad Simmons, Chip Todd, Roger Hendrix, and Tom Gatz  

Planning Director: John Hoard  

Clerk to the Board: Cassie Crutchfield  

Commissioners: Carl M. Ellington   

Absent: Roy Fielding and Scott Fandel 

  

CALL TO ORDER AND INVOCATION  

  

Chairman Long called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m., declared a quorum present and the 

meeting duly constituted to carry on business. Mr. Gatz gave the invocation.   

  

ORDER OF BUSINESS  

  

Approval of Minutes the August 19, 2019 Regular Meeting:  Upon the motion of Mr. Simmons, 

seconded by Mr. Hendrix, the Board unanimously approved the minutes of the August 19, 2019 

Planning Board meeting.  

  

Additions or Deletions of Agenda Items: None.  

  

Reports of Committees, Members and Staff: None.  

  

Old Business: None.  

  

 New Business:  

   

A. Discussion and Recommendation on #ZC19-3, Filed by Caliber Partners, Parcel Number 

137-152-02, Located at 12936 Albemarle Road, a conditional zoning request to allow a 

restaurant with a drive through: Town Planner Farber asked the applicant to present his case.   

  

Michael Newman, with MDV Engineering, at 125 Johnston Street, reviewed the site plan with the 

Board.  

 

Mr. Hendrix asked the height of the masonry screen wall? Mr. Newman said the four-foot-tall wall 

would run along the East side of the building.   

 

Mr. Gatz asked who was responsible for maintaining the private road, Clear Creek Road?  Mr. 

Newman said the developers building the road would be responsible for the on-going maintenance. 

Mr. Gatz asked if the Town was going to take over the maintenance of Clear Creek Road? Town 



Planner Farber said no, it was a private road. Mr. Gatz asked if there was a light on Albemarle 

Road? Mr. Newman said there was an existing light on Albemarle Road.  

 

  

Upon the motion of Mr. Gatz, seconded by Mr. Hendrix, the Board unanimously agreed to 

send a favorable recommendation to the Board of Commissioners on #ZC19-3, Filed by 

Caliber Partners, Parcel Number 137-152-02, Located at 12936 Albemarle Road, a 

conditional zoning request to allow a restaurant with a drive through.  

 

Other Business: None. 

  

Adjournment: Upon the motion of Mr. Simmons, seconded by Mr. Todd and unanimously agreed 

upon, Chairman Long adjourned the meeting at 6:36 p.m.  

  

  

  

______________________________  

Cassie Crutchfield, Clerk to the Board  

  

 

 

 



Planning Staff 

704-545-9726 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 

  

CASE:  S19-18 

EXISTING ZONING R DO-A  

PROPERTY OWNER: MINT HILL PARTNERS, LLC 

APPLICANT: MINT HILL PARTNERS, LLC 

LOCATION: PHYLISS LANE AND SOARING EAGLE LANE 

TAX PARCEL NUMBER: 135-271-83 & 135-275-29 

REQUEST: MAJOR SUBDIVISION 14 LOTS 

 

 

 APPLICATION SUMMARY: 

 

Major Subdivision request to add fourteen (14) lots to Brighton Park. No new public roads proposed. 

 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

 

The lots are considered Type B (Alley Lots). The alley lot is a lot with an average width not exceeding fifty (50) feet. 

Primary vehicular access is provided using a rear lane or alley only. No curb cuts or driveways are permitted along the 

frontage.  

 

Alleys are reviewed by Town Staff, Mecklenburg County Land Development and the County Fire Marshall.  

 

Lot Requirements: 

 

Front Building-To Line: Ten (10) to twenty-five (25) feet.  

Side: Six (6) feet each side, however the total of both side yards may be allocated to one side in new development 

Rear: Fifteen (15) feet from centerline of alley 

Minimum Lot Width: Twenty-four (24) feet.  

 

Approved Building Materials for Brighton Park: 

 

Brick, stone, wood clapboard, wood shingle, wood drop siding, primed board, wood board and batten, cementitious fiber 

board.  

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Favorable Recommendation 



���������

�����	
��
��


����	���������������	
������	����	�����
�

�����	����
�������������	�	�����������	���������	�

�����	
������	����	����	�����	
�������	�	��������

��
�������	����������	���������	��������	�����
������

���	����������������������
�	�����������������
�������


��	��������������	�	��������	����
���������������������

�������	������������
���	��������������	��������
��	���

��� ! "#!$

%&'(
)*+,

-./01

�������������������

�2	��	����	���3��3���

����������	���3��3���

������������	��

��������������
4

567689:

��;�
�������������	��

<
=>
?
@A
=B
B
C@>
D
E
?
A
@F
G
E
D
B
=>
G

H
I

������������	��������
�������
����3
�


���������J���

	�K���������
%LM)

�������
�N�������
���������������	�������	������;�
�����������	������������
�	����	��������������	
��	�������	��������
���	�	�������������
����������������

���������������������	
����
�

O
E
=P
A
?
D
>
@Q
G
E
R
@G
?
@Q
A
S
B
=T
T
@B
G
>
U

V&WXYZ&[(,\(Y]Y).̂ _̂̂

-&̀&*Y%&'(Ya(\&b,

ZcdYeXf+['Ya(̀(*cfX(,'

%g&'(Ŷh1
-c,[cWijYYk-YY/l1/m

m̂h1Yn(ii&,b'c,Yoc+i

L(*(fpc,(qYm1h0rms0̂t/̂
V+[\&X&*(qYm1h0/hl0m_r̂

%X+**.%[+*(Yug&*i&,bYa(\&b,

v
w
w
x
yz
{
|}
x
�
w
w
x
|~
�
v
w
}
|�
|�
�
v
v
�
z
yx
yw
}

�
�
�
�
�
|�
�
z
w
|�
�
�
v
�
|�
�
I

�
�
�
z
w
�y
w
�
}
�|
z
�
|�
�
�
�
�

s�Y�ek0Yo��o
��oaY

aW&̀(d+�

%M�oek�Y���Z��)��ZZe%YZ�k�

%&i(d+*�

uLZ0
VoMkL
�ek0����
1̂�Y�Y/r�

%ea�Y%�Lu�-�t011� t011�

Z+d,

%&i(d+*�

��
��
 

Z+d,

Loe�k�Z�
%e��LY
r̂�Y�Ŷr�

��oaY
s�Y�ek0Yo��o

uLZ0
VoMkL
�ek0����
1̂�Y�Y/r�

¡¢£¤¥¦ §̈ ©¢¥ª ̈¥¥¦ª ¥«¬¡

®̄ °±²³́±µ¶·̧ ¶́³µ
¡¹̈ ¥¦º £¬¡

®̄ °±²³́°·̧ ¶°µ¶́³µ
¡¹̈ ¥¦º £¬¡

%ea�Y%�Lu�-�t011� t011�

u»eZaek�
)oek-e)�ZY

u»eZaek�
)oek-e)�ZY

%M�oek�Y���Z��)��ZZe%YZ�k�

�ZZ��

aW&̀(d+�

�ZZ��


 �����

�
�
4
�

������

�

�


	

�

� ��	

�

���

��

�	

��

���


�

�

�
�

�
�

�

�¼���½

�

�

	�

��¾��¾��||��y{yz��|}�Hvyxx��



Planning Staff 

704-545-9726 

 

 

 STAFF REPORT 
 

  

CASE:  ZC19-4 

EXISTING ZONING B-G DO-B  

PROPOSED ZONING B-G DO-B (CD) 

PROPERTY OWNER: SGH MINT HILL, LLC 

APPLICANT SGH MINT HILL, LLC 

LOCATION 7404 MATTHEWS-MINT HILL ROAD 

TAX PARCEL NUMBER 197-012-08 

REQUEST RESTAURANT, WITH DRIVE THROUGH 

 

 

 APPLICATION SUMMARY: 

 

The applicant is requesting conditional zoning approval to allow a 4,857 square foot drive through restaurant. According 

Section 7.4, Downtown Code, Drive Through Facilities are subject to the issuance of a Conditional District rezoning 

approval.  

 

Improvements to Matthews-Mint Hill Road will include a traffic signal with mast arms, pedestrian signal, crosswalks 

(with pavers), turn lanes and streetscape requirements.  

 

*Please note the stormwater management system contains a retaining wall. Staff was instructed by the Board of 

Commissioners in 2015 to prohibit BMPs with retaining walls from the Downtown. If permitted, the applicant will screen 

the BMP with landscaping, as indicated on the Zoning Plan.   

 

 

Exceptions to the provisions of this Ordinance (except for Permitted Uses and Excluded Uses) may be approved as a 

Conditional District rezoning approval by the Board of Commissioners upon a recommendation by the Planning Board. In 

granting a Conditional District rezoning approval as an exception to these provisions, the Board shall first determine that:  

a) No practical design alternatives exist; and 

b) The variations/exceptions requested are consistent with the purpose and intent of this District as well as Section 

1.2 General Building Design Guidelines. 

 

 

 

The application includes a request for Exceptions to the Code. 

 

• 4.4 1. No curb cuts or driveways are permitted along the frontage 

• 4.4.1. Front setback: Zero (0) to twenty-five (25) feet -The building placement exceeds the 25’ max setback  

• 2.8 (Conditional District Provisions) 4. Circulation lanes in the front of the building, if permitted, should not 

exceed 10 feet in total width and should be visually differentiated using a brick or concrete paver, stamped 

and/or colored pavement technique, or a treatment similar in appearance. 

• Maximum parking (No more than 150% of the 38 required parking) =57 spaces. Proposed parking is 88 spaces  

• 6.1C No off-street parking area shall be located within any front yard 

• 4.4 2. A (2) A functional doorway for public or direct access into a building shall be from the fronting street 

façade…Corner Lot buildings shall have either corner entrances or a separate entrance for each street front. 

•  6.1 F. Parking lots shall not occupy more than one-third (1/3) of the frontage of the adjacent building or no 

more than seventy-five (75) feet, whichever is less.  



Planning Staff 

704-545-9726 

 

 

 

Conditional District decisions shall be made in consideration of identified relevant adopted land use plan. Conditional 

District rezoning is a legislative procedure under which the Board of Commissioners has the authority to increase, tighten, 

add, vary, modify or waive specific conditions or standards.  In approving a petition for the rezoning of property to a 

Conditional District the Board of Commissioners may request reasonable and appropriate conditions. 

 

PLAN CONSISTENCY: 

 

The Future Land Use Plan Map indicates the property’s current zoning, Downtown Overlay Town-Center (DO-B). The  

Downtown Master Plan and Downtown Code are the primary documents to guide development and rezoning decisions for 

the Downtown.  

 

The Downtown Master Plan is broken into seven sub-areas. The property in question is in the NC 51 Corridor sub-area. 

According to the Master Plan map (see below), retail and office is suggested for the property, preferably built as detached 

structures and parking placed to the rear. Preserving the existing canopy trees larger than 24 inches in caliper is 

recommended for NC 51 Corridor sub-area.   

 

 
 

The permitted uses in the DO-B district include retail, restaurants, entertainment uses and day care centers. Convenience 

stores, gas stations, drive through facilities and car washes (subject to the issuance of a Conditional District rezoning 

approval). 

 

The Downtown Master Plan does not directly address drive through facilities.    

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Unfavorable recommendation  

 

 



10

11

11

11

5

5

15

11P

1

2

-

S

E

-

V

2

-

L

A

R

G

E

4

,

8

5

7

 

S

.

F

.

1

1

2

 

S

E

A

T

S

 

(

i

n

s

i

d

e

)

4

0

 

S

E

A

T

S

 

(

o

u

t

d

o

o

r

s

)

8

8

 

P

A

R

K

S

 

O

N

-

S

I

T

E

3

1

 

C

A

R

 

S

T

A

C

K

F

.

F

.

E

.

 

=

 

7

8

8

.

0

0

5

D

R

I

V

E

T

H

R

U

4

PROPOSED

SIDEWALK

PROPOSED

SIDEWALK

PROPOSED

FULL ACCESS

DRIVEWAY WITH

STRIPED

CROSS-WALK

PROPOSED

RIGHT-IN/RIGHT-OUT

DRIVEWAY

CONNECT TO

EXISTING

SIDEWALK

PROPOSED

STRIPED

 ISLAND

REFER TO SHEET C-2.0 &

L-1.0 FOR INTERNAL SITE

AND LANDSCAPING

INFROMATION

PROPOSED

RETAINING WALLS

(±342 L.F. TOTAL)

FOR STORM WATER

MANAGEMENT

SYSTEM

STORM WATER

BMP

M

I

N

T

 

H

I

L

L

 

C

T

P

 

F

U

T

U

R

E

 

R

/

W

 

(

1

1

8

'

)

2

5

'

 

B

L

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

2

5

'

 

B

L

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

20' BL SETBACK

2
0
'
 
B

L
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

20' BL SETBACK

10' BUFFER

10' BUFFER

1
0
'
 
B

U
F

F
E

R

3
0
'
 
B

U

F

F

E

R

PROPOSED

SIGNALIZED

INTERSECTION

WITH LEFT TURN

LANES

PROPOSED

CONCRETE

ISLAND TAPER

PROPOSED

BICYCLE

PARKING

5-DWM

1-FH

1-FH

5-DWM

1-FH

5-DWM

1-FH

5-DWM

1-FH

5-DWM

1-FH

5-DWM

1-FH

5-DWM

1-FH
5-DWM

5-DWM

5-DWM

O

N

L

Y

O

N

L

Y

MATTHEWS-M
IN

T H
ILL R

OAD

(N
.C

. H
WY 51)

VARIA
BLE PUBLIC

 R
/W

(M
B. 4

7 PG. 9
13)

(N
CDOT M

AIN
TAIN

ED)

780

780

78
5

785

785
785

785

785

C
R

ESTH
ILL D

R
IVE

60' PU
B

LIC
 R

/W

(M
B

. 53 PG
. 707)

(M
B

. 9 PG
. 335)

(TO
W

N
 O

F M
IN

T H
ILL

M
A

IN
TA

IN
ED

)

POC

POB

39

Date:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

I
S

S
U

E
D

C
O

M
M

E
N

T

Drawn: RSM

Checked: ---

0 30 60 90

SCALE: 1" = 30'

9-10-19

N

40
2 

Ea
st

 F
irs

t A
ve

nu
e

Ea
sl

ey
, S

ou
th

 C
ar

ol
in

a 
29

64
0

(8
64

) 8
55

-5
20

0
w

w
w

.c
ss

-e
ng

.c
om

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
I
A

L

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T

74
04

 M
A

T
T

H
E

W
S-

M
IN

T
 H

IL
L

 R
O

A
D

M
IN

T
 H

IL
L

, N
C

 2
82

27

70
0 

E
. M

O
R

E
H

E
A

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T
C

H
A

R
L

O
T

T
E

, N
C

 2
82

02
PH

: 7
04

-8
87

-4
76

0
C

O
N

T
A

C
T

:  
ST

E
V

E
 H

A
R

R
IS

PR
E

PA
R

E
D

 F
O

R
:

NC COA C-3123

811CALL BEFORE
YOU DIG

R
E

Z
O

N
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

C-1.0

GENERAL PROVISIONS:

1. DEVELOPMENT OF THE SITE SHALL BE GOVERNED BY THE INFORMATION

SUBMITTED WITH THE REZONING APPLICATION, DEVELOPMENT

STANDARDS, THE APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE TOWN OF MINT HILL

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO) AND APPROVED EXCEPTIONS.

2. THE SCHEMATIC DEPICTIONS OF THE USE, PARKING AREAS, SIDEWALKS,

STRUCTURES AND BUILDINGS, AND OTHER SITE ELEMENTS PROPOSED

SET FORTH ON THE PLANS SUBMITTED WITH THE REZONING APPLICATION

AND MAY BE ALTERED OR MODIFIED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TOWN OF

MINT HILL AMENDMENT PROCEDURES FOR APPROVED CONDITIONAL

DISTRICTS.

ACCESS AND ROAD IMPROVEMENT NOTES:

1. SITE ACCESS WILL BE AS GENERALLY DEPICTED ON THE REZONING PLAN.

2. IMPROVEMENTS TO MATTHEWS-MINT HILL ROAD WILL BE AS GENERALLY

DEPICTED ON THE REZONING PLAN AND AS NECESSARY TO SECURE

CONSTRUCTION PLAN AND NCDOT APPROVAL.

3. IMPROVEMENTS TO MATTHEWS MINT HILL ROAD WILL INCLUDE A TRAFFIC

SIGNAL WITH MAST ARMS, PEDESTRIAN SIGNAL, CROSSWALKS (WITH

PAVERS), TURN LANES, STREETSCAPE WITH PEDESTRIAN LIGHTS (WITH

OUTLETS), STREET TREES AND PAVERBANDS.

4. THE PLACEMENT AND CONFIGURATIONS OF VEHICULAR ACCESS POINTS

AND IMPROVEMENTS IN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY ARE SUBJECT TO MINOR

MODIFICATIONS TO RECEIVE APPROVAL FROM NCDOT AND AS REQUIRED

TO ACCOMMODATE FINAL SITE PLAN DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION

PLAN APPROVAL.

5. IMPROVEMENTS TO CRESTHILL DRIVE WILL BE AS GENERALLY DEPICTED

ON THE REZONING PLAN AND AS NECESSARY TO SECURE NCDOT

APPROVAL AND AS REQUIRED TO ACCOMMODATE FINAL SITE PLAN

DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION PLAN APPROVAL.

6. IMPROVEMENTS TO CRESTHILL DRIVE WILL INCLUDE STREETSCAPE WITH

PEDESTRIAN LIGHTS (WITH OUTLETS) AND  STREET TREES OR AS

REQUIRED BY THE TOWN OF MINT HILL.

7. ALL ROAD IMPROVEMENTS WILL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE

DEVELOPER.

LANDSCAPE AREAS, TREES AND SCREENING:

1. SCREENING AND LANDSCAPED AREAS OF THIS SITE SHALL EXCEED THE

STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS SET FORTH IN THE TOWN OF MINT HILL'S

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE.

2. SOLID WASTE WILL BE HANDLED THROUGH ONSITE DUMPSTER. DUMPSTER

AND SERVICE AREA WILL BE SCREENED AS SHOWN ON THE LANDSCAPE

PLAN.

3. ALL LANDSCAPING,  INCLUDING STREET TREES WITHIN THE PROPERTY

BOUNDARIES, SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE PROPERTY OWNER OR

TENANT.

4. PROPOSED LANDSCAPING WILL BE IRRIGATED AND MAINTAINED BY THE

PROPERTY OWNER OR TENANT.

SETBACKS, YARDS, AND BUFFERS:

1. THE BUILDING SHALL BE LOCATED AS GENERALLY DEPICTED ON THE SITE

PLAN WITH EXCEPTION REQUEST NOTED ON THE REZONING AND SITE

PLANS.

2. PARKING SPACES AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES MAY NOT

BE INSTALLED IN PROPOSED BUFFERS.

ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS:

1. THE ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS OF THE BUILDING WILL BE AS GENERALLY

DEPICTED ON THE ELEVATIONS SUBMITTED WITH THE REZONING

APPLICATION.

2. THE ARCHITECTURAL ELEVATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO MINOR

MODIFICATIONS TO RECEIVE APPROVAL FROM THE TOWN OF MINT HILL

AND MECKLENBURG COUNTY.

PARKING:

1. THE OFF-STREET PARKING CONFIGURATION WILL BE AS SHOWN ON THE

SITE PLAN SUBMITTED WITH THE REZONING APPLICATION.

2. NO PARKING MAY BE CONSTRUCTED WITHIN PROPOSED BUFFER AREAS.

3. ALL NEW PARKING AREAS WILL BE SCREENED AS SHOWN ON THE

LANDSCAPE PLAN SUBMITTED WITH THE REZONING APPLICATION.

LIGHTING:

1. A SITE LIGHTING PLAN WILL BE INCLUDED IN THE CONSTRUCTION

DRAWINGS AND WILL MEET THE TOWN OF MINT HILL OUTDOOR LIGHTING

STANDARDS.

STORMWATER MANAGMENT:

1. THE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITY WILL BE DESIGNED TO TREAT

RUNOFF FROM THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

POST-CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS OF THE TOWN OF MINT HILL AND

MECKLENBURG COUNTY.

2. THE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITY IS SUBJECT TO REVIEW AND

APPROVAL BY THE MECKLENBURG COUNTY LAND USE & ENVIRONMENTAL

SERVICES AGENCY.

3. THE STORMWATER FACILITY WILL NOT BE LOCATED WITHIN PROPOSED

BUFFER AREAS.

4. THE USE OF RETAINING WALLS FOR THE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

FACILITY IS REQUESTED TO PROVIDE THE NECESSARY TREATMENT

VOLUME WHILE MAINTAINING THE PROPOSED BUFFERS.

5. THE EXTERIOR OF THE PROPOSED RETAINING WALLS WILL BE SCREENED

WITH LANDSCAPING LOCATED IN THE PROPOSED BUFFER AREA AS SHOWN

ON THE REZONING PLAN.

SIGNAGE:

1. SIGNAGE WILL MEET THE TOWN OF MINT HILL UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT

ORDINANCE.

UNDISTURBED AREA:

1. 10% OF THE SITE AREA WILL REMAIN UNDISTURBED DURING

CONSTRUCTION BUT WILL BE PLANTED WITH VEGETATION IF NONE EXISTS.

UNDISTURBED AREA WILL BE MITIGATED AS NECESSARY THROUGH

MECKLENBURG COUNTY IF CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS REDUCE

AVAILABLE OPEN SPACE

CONDITIONAL NOTES AND  STANDARDS

SIZE REQUIREMENTSQUANTITY SYMBOL SCIENTIFIC NAMECODE COMMON NAME SPACING

SIZE REQUIREMENTSQUANTITY SYMBOL SCIENTIFIC NAMECODE COMMON NAME SPACING

STORMWATER FACILITY SCREENING TREE LIST

STORMWATER FACILITY SCREENING SHRUB LIST

FH10

ILLEX

ATTENUATA

'FOSTERI'

FOSTER'S

HOLLY

3" CAL. MIN.

12' MIN. HT.

AS

SHOWN

DWM50

AS

SHOWN

5 GAL. MIN. OR

36" MIN. HT.

MYRICA

CERIFERA

'DON'S DWARF'

DONS DWARF

WAX MYRTLE

1. A PROPOSED RIGHT-IN/RIGHT-OUT DRIVEWAY IS REQUESTED TO BE

PERMITTED ALONG THE FRONTAGE AS SHOWN ON THE REZONING PLANS.

2. IT IS REQUESTED THAT THE BUILDING PLACEMENT BE ALLOWED TO EXCEED

THE 25' MAXIMUM SETBACK.

3. PROPOSED CIRCULATION LANES WIDER THAN TEN FEET (10') ARE REQUESTED

IN FRONT OF THE BUILDING TO ALLOW FOR TWO CIRCULATION LANES.

4. AN INCREASE IN MAXIMUM PARKING IS REQUESTED TO ALLOW EIGHTY EIGHT

(88) PROPOSED PARKING SPACES.

5. AN EXCEPTION IS REQUESTED FOR SIX (6) PARKING SPACES TO BE PLACED IN

THE FRONT YARD AS SHOWN ON THE REZONING PLANS.

6.  IT IS REQUESTED THAT ACCESS TO THE BUILDING BE ALLOWED AS SHOWN ON

THE CURRENT BUILDING FOOTPRINT.

7. AN EXCEPTION IS REQUESTED FOR THE PARKING LOT TO OCCUPY MORE THAN

ONE-THIRD (

1

3

) OF THE FRONTAGE AND MORE THAN SEVENTY-FIVE FEET (75') FOR

THE PARKING LOT CONFIGURATION SHOWN ON THE REZONING PLANS.

REQUESTED EXCEPTIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"x48"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"x48"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE=787.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV:783.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV:783.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV:784.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV:783.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV:783.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MBX

AutoCAD SHX Text
MBX

AutoCAD SHX Text
MBX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TBM=788.04 NAIL IN TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EIR @ BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"EIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EIR @ BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"EIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"EIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"EIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2'EIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"EIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2'EIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"EIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ECM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ECM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ECM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ECM

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"NIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"NIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
N51°36'24"E  262.76'(TOTAL)(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
54.96'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
207.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S37°41'21"E  290.50'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S08°28'55"W  117.12'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°21'09"W  253.06'(TOTAL)(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
138.78'

AutoCAD SHX Text
114.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S08°12'41"W  147.02'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°33'41"W  95.01'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00°40'59"E  146.08'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°21'00"W  179.83'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00°39'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
56.00'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N38°06'28"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.72'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N12°21'48"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
62.02'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N67°07'20"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
54.07'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N51°25'56"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.74'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N36°12'26"W  211.08'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EIR 0.27' WEST OF LINE IN TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
EIR IN CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
26,116 SQ. FT. OR 0.5995 ACRES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,267 SQ. FT. OR 0.3505 ACRES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
70,369 SQ. FT. OR 1.6154 ACRES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
21,033 SQ. FT. OR 0.4828 ACRES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
# 11311 1STORY BRICK FOOTPRINT= 2,075 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLDG. HT.=15.3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
62.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
47.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GR:779.52 IN:776.14 OUT:775.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TBM=782.83 TOP BOLT FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GR:779.89 IN(A):775.29 IN(B):776.91 OUT:775.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" C&G

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EN &  BASE EIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 2 MB. 53 PG. 707 PIN # 197-012-08

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 1 MB. 53 PG. 707 PIN # 197-012-09

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 3 LOT 1  BLOCK B MB. 9 PG. 335 "CRESTHILL" PIN # 197-012-10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 3 BETTY RAE LONG DB. 4184 PG. 339 PIN # 197-012-26

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNETH WILSON JANETTE WILSON  LOT 2 BLOCK B @ ADJACENT MB. 9 PG. 335 "CRESTHILL" PIN # 197-012-11

AutoCAD SHX Text
MCEWEN FAMILY LAND PARTNERSHIP DB. 5276 PG. 184 PIN # 197-012-06

AutoCAD SHX Text
MCEWEN FUNERAL SERVICES INC DB. 4673 PG. 165 PIN # 197-012-29

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAVIN FUNERAL HOME INC DB. 5276 PG. 182 PIN # 197-012-07

AutoCAD SHX Text
GR:779.68 OUT:776.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(A)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(B)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GR:780.43 OUT:776.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
GR:773.48 IN:769.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
S51°26'00"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
189.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TIE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S36°53'24"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
5460.32'(GROUND)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5459.46'(GRID)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NGS MONUMENT "M O68" N=527518.98 E=1509372.83 ELEV=737.77 CGF=0.99984266

AutoCAD SHX Text
N40°15'06"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
13961.75'(GROUND)

AutoCAD SHX Text
13959.55'(GRID)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NGS MONUMENT "M 075" N=516863.20 E=1500351.47 ELEV=768.64 CGF=0.99984266

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°06'41"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
124.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TIE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N46°47'56"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TIE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N:523,219.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
E:1,506,145.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
N13°52'32"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.96'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N53°10'04"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
54.97'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S68°43'12"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
54.00'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N36°39'39"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.71'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N02°07'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
56.00'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S36°07'29"E  290.45'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10°07'01"W  117.23'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°46'48"W  114.05'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°46'48"W  138.83'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N52°55'27"E  69.80'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N34°39'39"W  210.98'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N53°10'04"E  207.85'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S09°43'10"W  147.29'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°53'00"W  94.58'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N02°07'00"E  146.00'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°53'00"W  180.00'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX C/L ROAD IMPROVEMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 8" WATER LINE CLT WATER JOB NO: 100-05-068 CLT WATER FILE: 356-13

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 8" WATER LINE CLT WATER JOB NO: 743-93-335 CLT WATER FILE: 224-005

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 16" BFV: ±996 LFEX. 8" G.V.: ±995 LF

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 16" BFV: ±1,084 LF

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 6"PVC WATER LINE CLT WATER JOB NO: 579-97-261 CLT WATER FILE: 356-003

AutoCAD SHX Text
PMH RIM:±778.59INV OUT:±767.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO BE VERIFIED BY SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO BE VERIFIED BY SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORNERSTONE COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES OF THE CAROLINAS, LLC PIN # 137-301-43

AutoCAD SHX Text
3712 TOWN VIEW DRIVE PROPERTIES, LLC PIN # 137-301-44

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 8" SEWER LINE CLT WATER JOB NO: 100-18-542

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH SEWER EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION MAP   N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DATA LOCATION / LOT INFORMATION SITE ADDRESS:  7400 MATTHEWS-MINT HILL ROAD          MINT HILL, NC PARCEL ID NUMBERS:  197-012-08; 197-012-09; 197-012-26. PARCEL SIZE:  ±2.45 ACRESEXISTING BUILT UPON AREA:  0.31 AC (ON SITE IMPERVIOUS & GRAVEL AREA) PROPOSED BUILT UPON AREA:  1.52 AC (ON SITE IMPERVIOUS AREA) WATERSHED DISTRICT: MCALPINE & GOOSE WATERSHEDS POST CONSTRUCTION DISTRICT:  CATAWBA & GOOSE CREEK DISTRICTS PROPOSED SITE USE AND ZONING CLASS USE: RESTAURANT OCCUPANCY: COMMERCIAL ZONING CLASS:  B-G DO-B (GENERAL BUSINESS DOWNTOWN OVERLAY DISTRICT)*CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUIRED - DO-B (CD). NEIGHBORING ZONING CLASS:  B-G DO-B & R DO-A BUILDING SETBACKS: SHOPFRONT (BUILDINGS LESS THAN 20,000 SF): FRONT:  0 FT TO 25 FT SIDE:  0 FT REAR:  20 FT BUFFER REQUIREMENTS: 30' BUFFER BETWEEN B-G DO-B & R DO-A



P

R

E

L

I

M

I

N

A

R

Y

N

o

t

 

y

e

t

 

a

p

p

r

o

v

e

d

f

o

r

 

c

o

n

s

t

r

u

c

t

i

o

n

18005CFA

08/15/19

I
N

I
T

I
A

L
 
R

E
V

I
E

W
0
7
/
0
9
/
1
9

A

LOT 2

Carter Engineering Consultants, Inc.
3651 Mars Hill Road, Suite 2000
Watkinsville, GA 30677
P: 770.725.1200
F: 770.725.1204
www.carterengineering.net

ENGINEERING

CONSULTANTS

CARTER

Sheet

Job No.

Date

Store 

N
o
.

D
A
T
E

B
Y

STORE # 4436

4436

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
0
7
/
2
4
/
1
9

B

P
C

R
 
R

E
V

I
E

W
0
7
/
3
1
/
1
9

C

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
0
8
/
1
5
/
1
9

D

P

1

2

-

S

E

-

V

2

-

L

A

R

G

E

4

,

8

5

7

 

S

.

F

.

1

1

2

 

S

E

A

T

S

 

(

i
n

s

i
d

e

)

4

0

 

S

E

A

T

S

 

(

o

u

t

d

o

o

r

s

)

8

8

 

P

A

R

K

S

 

O

N

-

S

I

T

E

3

1

 

C

A

R

 

S

T

A

C

K

F

.

F

.

E

.

 

=

 

7

8

8

.

0

0

M

A

T

T

H

E

W

S

-

M

I

N

T

 

H

I

L

L

 

R

D

.

N

C

 

H

W

Y

 

5

1

(

V

A

R

I

A

B

L

E

 

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

R

/

W

)

(

M

B

.

 

4

7

,

 

P

G

.

 

9

1

3

)

S

I
G

N

E

X

.
S

I
G

N

E

X

.
S

I
G

N

E

X

.
S

I
G

N

E

X

.

S

I

G

N

E

X

.
 
6

"
 
M

A

P

E

X

.
 
2

4

"
 
O

A

K

2

"

T

R

E

E

(3) DOUBLE KNOCKOUT ROSE

(285sf) 'BIG BLUE' CREEPING LILYTURF

(10) INKBERRY HOLLY
(11) BANANAPPEAL ANISE TREE
(3) 'GREEN SHADOW' SWEETBAY MAGNOLIA

(5) DOUBLE KNOCKOUT ROSE
(10) INKBERRY HOLLY

(11) BANANAPPEAL ANISE TREE
(3) 'GREEN SHADOW' SWEETBAY MAGNOLIA

(3) 'LITTLE GEM' MAGNOLIA

(1) 'PANACHE' SHUMARD OAK

(8) DOUBLE KNOCKOUT ROSE

(9) BANANAPPEAL ANISE TREE
(3) 'LITTLE GEM' MAGNOLIA
(3) 'KANJIRO' CAMELLIA

(7) 'CHUCK HAYES' GARDENIA

(8) 'FOSTER'S' HOLLY

(170sf) 'BIG BLUE' CREEPING LILYTURF
(1) 'PANACHE' SHUMARD OAK

(4) 'KANJIRO' CAMELLIA
(1) 'PANACHE' SHUMARD OAK

(170sf) 'BIG BLUE' CREEPING LILYTURF(35) 'DON'S DWARF' WAX MYRTLE

(14) BANANAPPEAL ANISE TREE
(9) INKBERRY HOLLY

(170sf) 'BIG BLUE' CREEPING LILYTURF
(1) SHUMARD OAK

(4) 'KANJIRO' CAMELLIA
(1) SHUMARD OAK

(170sf) 'BIG BLUE' CREEPING LILYTURF(35) 'DON'S DWARF' WAX MYRTLE

(14) BANANAPPEAL ANISE TREE
(9) INKBERRY HOLLY

(3) OAKLEAF HOLLY
(11) 'DON'S DWARF' WAX MYRTLE

(1) SHAWNEE BRAVE BALD CYPRESS

(5,360sf) DOUBLE GROUND MULCH
(1) 'KANJIRO' CAMELLIA

(1) SHAWNEE BRAVE BALD CYPRESS

(8) 'CHUCK HAYES' GARDENIA
(1) NUTALL OAK

(9) BANANAPPEAL ANISE TREE

(11) INKBERRY HOLLY

(3) 'KANJIRO' CAMELLIA
(19) MUHLY GRASS

(460sf) 'NIKKO' DWARF DEUTZIA

(8) DOUBLE KNOCKOUT ROSE

(11) DWARF YAUPON HOLLY
(17) PEACH DRIFT ROSE
(1) 'KANJIRO' CAMELLIA

(3) 'KANJIRO' CAMELLIA

(250sf) 'NIKKO' DWARF DEUTZIA
(12) 'CHUCK HAYES' GARDENIA

(6) INKBERRY HOLLY

(6) CREEPING GARDENIA
(3) 'NATCHEZ' CRAPE MYRTLE

(13) INKBERRY HOLLY

3'0" FENCE RAILING PER DOWNTOWN
OVERLAY REQUIREMENT

3'0" FENCE RAILING PER DOWNTOWN
OVERLAY REQUIREMENT

(1,190sf) 'BOWLE'S VARIETY' PERIWINKLE

(4) INKBERRY HOLLY

(4) INKBERRY HOLLY
(6) CREEPING GARDENIA

(4,550sf) SOD - AS DIRECTED BY OWNER

(160sf) SEASONAL COLOR

(6) CREEPING GARDENIA

(25) CREEPING GARDENIA

(13) DOUBLE KNOCKOUT ROSE
(330sf) 'BIG BLUE' CREEPING LILYTURF

(2) SHUMARD OAK
(20) INKBERRY HOLLY

(10) DWARF YAUPON HOLLY
(2) NUTALL OAK

(16) PEACH DRIFT ROSE

(8) CREEPING GARDENIA

(1) 'KANJIRO' CAMELLIA
(21) 'CHUCK HAYES' GARDENIA
(1) 'KANJIRO' CAMELLIA

(8) 'CHUCK HAYES' GARDENIA
(1) SHUMARD OAK
(135sf) 'BIG BLUE' CREEPING LILYTURF

(1) SHUMARD OAK
(455sf) 'BOWLE'S VARIETY' PERIWINKLE

(44) 'CHUCK HAYES' GARDENIA

(1) SHUMARD OAK

(80sf) SOD - AS DIRECTED BY OWNER
(105sf) 'BIG BLUE' CREEPING LILYTURF

(14) DWARF YAUPON HOLLY

(1) SHUMARD OAK
(1) SHUMARD OAK

(105sf) 'BIG BLUE'
CREEPING LILYTURF

(15) INKBERRY HOLLY
(3) OAKLEAF HOLLY

(1) SHUMARD OAK
(105sf) 'BIG BLUE' CREEPING LILYTURF

(17) DWARF YAUPON HOLLY
(20) INKBERRY HOLLY
(175sf) SEASONAL COLOR
(1,680sf) SOD - AS DIRECTED BY OWNER

(7) INKBERRY HOLLY
(3) OAKLEAF HOLLY

(5) 'KANJIRO' CAMELLIA

(1) SHUMARD OAK

(410sf) 'BIG BLUE'
CREEPING LILYTURF

(10) INKBERRY HOLLY

(2) SHUMARD OAK

(350sf) 'BIG BLUE'
CREEPING LILYTURF

(545sf) 'BOWLE'S
VARIETY' PERIWINKLE

(17) PEACH DRIFT ROSE
(705sf) SOD - AS DIRECTED BY OWNER

(1) SHUMARD OAK

(260sf) SOD - AS
DIRECTED BY OWNER

P

R

O

P

.

 

3

'

 

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 

W

A

L

L

SITE

PLANTING NOTES:

1. The contractor shall locate and verify all existing and new utility line locations prior to

planting, and shall report any conflicts to the landscape architect. The contractor will be

responsible for the protection of all underground utilities during the life of the project.

2. The contractor is responsible for repair of any damage incurred during the execution of his

work.

3. The contractor shall stake all tree locations in the field and the staked locations shall be

reviewed and approved by Carter Engineering. Carter Engineering may make minor

adjustments to the layout without incurring additional costs to the project.

4. Mulch all plant areas for trees and shrubs with 3" layer of double ground shredded

hardwood mulch.

5. Any proposed substitutions of plant species will be with plants with equivalent overall form,

height, branching habit, flower color, leaf color, fruit color, and time of bloom, as approved

by Carter Engineering.

6. Substitutions shall not be made unless drawings and/or written requests are submitted to

Carter Engineering for approval. Carter Engineering shall determine equality based upon

complete information submitted by the contractor.

7. Trees: provide specimen balled and burlapped, or as specified, trees of height, size,

caliper, genus, species, cultivar and branching configuration indicated. The root system of

each shall be well provided with fibrous roots. All parts of plant shall be moist and show

active green cambium when cut. they shall be free of disease, insect pests, eggs or larvae.

All plants to be moved balled and burlapped, must be moved with the root systems as solid

units with balls of earth firmly wrapped with untreated burlap, firmly held in place by a stout

cord or wire, drum laced, boxed, or in containers.

8. Pruning and shaping: prune, thin out, and shape plants in compliance with American Hort's

'American Standard for Nursery Stock' to preserve the natural character and only as

approved by Carter Engineering design team.  Retain required height and spread. Do not

alter shape and do not cut leaders. Remove all dead wood, suckers, broken or bruised

branches, and crossing branches.

9. Stakes and Guys: to be round cedar posts.

10. The Carter Engineering representative reserves the right to reject plant material at the

nursery or at the site.

11. The trunk flare (at the base of the tree) shall be properly exposed for all plantings.

12. Keep root balls intact prior to and during planting operations. Plants with broken or

damaged root balls shall be rejected and immediately removed from the site. Keep root

balls damp and protected from damage due to sun and wind. Do not shave root balls.

13. Plant soil mixture will be used to backfill the planting area. Install plants simultaneously

with installation of planting soil mixes.

14. Tree planting: see tree planting detail and specification notes herein for additional

information related to planting pit dimensions, planting operations, backfilling, and staking

of trees.

15. Container stock planting: plant container grown stock the same as specified for balled and

burlapped stock, but remove containers completely.

16. Soil shall be free of all debris, construction material, and slurry.  Landscape areas shall be

backfilled with planting soil mixture per details and specifications.

17. Obstructions: if obstructions or other conditions detrimental to healthy plant growth are

encountered, notify Carter Engineering immediately and request additional instructions.

18. Watering and drainage: fill excavations with water and allow water to percolate out before

planting. If planting pits do not percolate or drain properly, notify the Carter Engineering

and request additional instructions prior to planting. Do not plant into poorly draining

planting pits; poorly draining planting pits may hold water and drown plants.

19. Flood all plants with water twice within the first 24 hours after planting.

20. All plant material shall be mulched after planting. Backfill to allow room for mulch after

settling, and place mulch in dish after first watering and within one week of planting. See

planting details for mulch thickness.

21. All plants shall be plumb vertically after settling or as directed by Carter Engineering.

22. Planting restrictions:  plant during one of the following periods.

· Spring planting (shrubs, groundcover, perennials) - March through May

· Fall planting shrubs (shrubs, groundcover, perennials) - Sept. through November

· Tree planting - September through April

23. Installer agrees to repair or replace plantings and accessories that fail in materials,

workmanship or growth within 18-months of substantial completion.  Failures include, but

are not limited to:

· Death and unsatisfactory growth, except for defects resulting from the lack of

adequate maintenance by owner.

· Structural failures including plantings falling or blowing over.

24. The contractor shall verify the quantities listed in the plant legend.  Contractor is

responsible for installing all plants shown on planting plans.  In case of discrepancies

Carter Engineering should be contacted.

25. All groundcover quantities shall be determined using the information provided in the

groundcover quantity and spacing chart within the Landscape Drawing Set.

GROUNDCOVER SPACING & QUANTITY

GROUNDCOVERS

'BEVAN'S VARIETY'

GERANIUM

BIG BLUE

LILYTURF

PLANT SPACING MULTIPLIER

(PLANTS PER SF)

PLANT SPACING

1.15

.74

18" .51

15"

12"

.2924"

SOD

(AS DIRECTED BY OWNER

TURF GRASS

4-MAN BOULDERS

4 TOTAL

GARDEN BOULDERS

MULCH
SEASONAL

COLOR

TREE MANAGEMENT CALCULATIONS:
GENERAL LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS:

TYPE A (OPAQUE SCREEN/BUFFER)
This type functions as an opaque screen from the ground to a height of at least eight
(8) feet. This type excludes visual contact between uses and creates a strong 
impression of spatial separation. Composition of the Type A Landscaping may 
include a wall, landscaped earthen berm, planted vegetation, existing vegetation, or
any appropriate combination of these elements. Intermittent plantings of deciduous
and evergreen trees shall obtain a height at maturity of no less than twenty (20) feet
and have no unobstructed openings wider than ten (10) feet between tree canopies
upon maturity. Shrub plantings shall have a minimum height of three (3) feet at 
installation and have no unobstructed openings wider than four (4) feet. At least
fifty (50) percent of the required trees, and at least seventy-five (75) percent of the
required shrubs, shall be evergreen species locally adapted to the area.

Proposed Shrubs: 136 Proposed Shrubs
Required Evergreen Shrubs: 75% of Proposed
Proposed Evergreen Shrubs: 123 Proposed Shrubs (90%)

Proposed Trees: 23 Proposed Trees
Required Evergreen Trees: 50% of Proposed
Proposed Evergreen Trees: 20 Proposed Trees (87%)

TYPE B (SEMI-OPAQUE SCREEN)
This type functions as a semi-opaque screen from the ground to at least a height of
four (4) feet for screening of car lights and glare. Intermittent planting of deciduous
and evergreen trees shall obtain a height at maturity of no less than twenty (20) feet
and have no unobstructed openings wider than twenty (20) feet between canopies
upon maturity. Shrub plantings shall have no unobstructed openings wider than four
(4) feet. At least seventy-five (75) percent of the required shrubs shall be evergreen
species locally adapted to the area. All side yard parking areas in the DO-B district
shall be screened from the sidewalk by low walls, fences or constructed as a 
continuation of a building wall a minimum of three (3) feet in height..

Proposed Shrubs: 172 Proposed Shrubs
Required Evergreen Shrubs: 75% of Proposed
Proposed Evergreen Shrubs: 138 Proposed Shrubs (80%)

TYPE C (INTERIOR PLANTINGS)
No parking space shall be less than sixty (60) feet from the base of a canopy tree.

ALL PARKING SPACES ARE WITHIN SIXTY (60) FEET OF A CANOPY TREE.

LANDSCAPE

PLAN

L-1.0

Know what's below

Call before you dig

dial 811

GRAPHIC SCALE

0 20' 40' 60'20' 10'

SCALE 1" = 20'

LOCATION MAP

SCALE: N.T.S.



DESIGN INTENT PACKAGE

THE CHICK-FIL-A DESIGN INTENT PACKAGE REPRESENTS A BRAND COMPLIANT DESIGN SOLUTION.  SITE ADAPT PROFESSIONALS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR APPLICATION OF DESIGN AND COMPLIANCE OF WITH ORDINANCES AND CODES.  

STORE NUMBER

DESIGN SIGN-OFF

DESIGN LEADER DATE

PROTOTYPE

VERSION

TIER

BUILDING AREA

SEAT COUNT  - INTERIOR
SEAT COUNT - EXTERIOR

SEATING TYPE

REGISTERS

DRIVE-THRU

LEED

LANDSCAPING

OPTIONS:

RESTROOM

WATER FILTRATION

PLAYGROUND

KITCHEN LAYOUT

8
/2

/2
0
1
9
 3

:5
3
:5

7
 P

M

DIP COVER SHEET

08/02/201904436, MINT HILL, MATTHEW -MINT HILL RD & CRESTHILL DRIVE, MINT HILL, NC 28227

04436MINT HILL
MATTHEW -MINT HILL RD & CRESTHILL DRIVE , MINT HILL , NC 28227

D
-0

10

P12_SE LRG

-

TIER 1

STANDARD

4

104
28

YES

NOT CERTIFIED

STANDARD

THREE FIXTURE

TYPE 1

STANDARD

CENTERLINE

PERSPECTIVE VIEW - ENTRY

4863 SF



THE CHICK-FIL-A DESIGN INTENT PACKAGE REPRESENTS A BRAND COMPLIANT DESIGN SOLUTION.  SITE ADAPT PROFESSIONALS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR APPLICATION OF DESIGN AND COMPLIANCE OF WITH ORDINANCES AND CODES.  

8
/2

/2
0
1
9
 3

:5
4
:0

7
 P

M

PERSPECTIVE VIEWS

08/02/201904436, MINT HILL, MATTHEW -MINT HILL RD & CRESTHILL DRIVE, MINT HILL, NC 28227

D
-0

20

PERSPECTIVE VIEW - REAR LEFT

PERSPECTIVE VIEW - REAR RIGHTPERSPECTIVE VIEW - FRONT RIGHT



T.O. SLAB

0"

EC-1

BR-4

BR-5

T.O. LOW PLATE

20'-4 1/2"

T.O. BRICK

14'-0"

WATER TABLE

3'-0"

T.O. HIGH PLATE

22'-0"

HEADER

9'-8"

C4-F C4-F C1-C C1-C
BR-3

T.O. SLAB

0"

EC-1

BR-4

BR-3

T.O. LOW PLATE

20'-4 1/2"

T.O. BRICK

14'-0"

WATER TABLE

3'-0"

T.O. HIGH PLATE

22'-0"

HEADER

9'-8"

C1-C C1-C C1-C C4-E C4-F C4-F

BR-5

THE CHICK-FIL-A DESIGN INTENT PACKAGE REPRESENTS A BRAND COMPLIANT DESIGN SOLUTION.  SITE ADAPT PROFESSIONALS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR APPLICATION OF DESIGN AND COMPLIANCE OF WITH ORDINANCES AND CODES.  

8
/2

/2
0
1
9
 3

:5
4
:1

1
 P

M

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

08/02/201904436, MINT HILL, MATTHEW -MINT HILL RD & CRESTHILL DRIVE, MINT HILL, NC 28227

D
-0

60

1/8" = 1'-0"

EXTERIOR ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

EXTERIOR ELEVATION



T.O. SLAB

0"

BR-4

BR-5

EC-1

T.O. LOW PLATE

20'-4 1/2"

T.O. BRICK

14'-0"

WATER TABLE

3'-0"

T.O. HIGH PLATE

22'-0"

HEADER

9'-8"

C4-A

BR-3

T.O. SLAB

0"

BR-4 EC-1

BR-3

T.O. LOW PLATE

20'-4 1/2"

T.O. BRICK

14'-0"

WATER TABLE

3'-0"

T.O. HIGH PLATE

22'-0"

HEADER

9'-8"

C1-C C1-C C1-C C1-C C1-C

BR-5

THE CHICK-FIL-A DESIGN INTENT PACKAGE REPRESENTS A BRAND COMPLIANT DESIGN SOLUTION.  SITE ADAPT PROFESSIONALS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR APPLICATION OF DESIGN AND COMPLIANCE OF WITH ORDINANCES AND CODES.  

8
/2

/2
0
1
9
 3

:5
4
:1

5
 P

M

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

08/02/201904436, MINT HILL, MATTHEW -MINT HILL RD & CRESTHILL DRIVE, MINT HILL, NC 28227

D
-0

70

1/8" = 1'-0"

EXTERIOR ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

EXTERIOR ELEVATION

A301_ATTACHED CANOPY SCHEDULE

Mark Description Count
Overall
Width

Overall
Depth

Tie Back
Mounting (Offset

From Top)
Integral
Lighting

C1-C Exterior Canopy 9 7'-1" 1'-0" 0" No

C4-A Exterior Canopy 1 5'-0" 4'-0" 2'-6" Yes

C4-E Exterior Canopy 1 7'-1" 4'-0" 2'-6" Yes

C4-F Exterior Canopy 4 7'-1" 4'-0" 2'-6" No

C5-A Exterior Canopy 1 10'-8" 5'-0" 2'-6" Yes

Grand total 16

EXTERIOR FINISHES

EC-1

PREFINISHED METAL COPING

COLOR:  DARK BRONZE

BR-3

BRICK VENEER

COLOR: MORNING SMOKE (MODULAR)
MORTAR: ARGOS SAN TAN

PT-9

EXTERIOR PAINT

COLOR:  DARK BRONZE

ST-1

STOREFRONT

COLOR:  DARK BRONZE

FINISH: SEMI-GLOSS

BR-4

BRICK VENEER
COLOR: V100 / SIZE: MODULAR
MORTAR: ARGOS SAN TAN

BR-5

BRICK VENEER
COLOR: CLAYTON FALLS (MODULAR)
MORTAR: ARGOS SAN TAN



Planning Staff 

704-545-9726 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 

  

CASE:  ZC19-5 

EXISTING ZONING B-P (CD)  

PROPOSED ZONING B-G (CD) 

PROPERTY OWNER: MARGATE CAPITAL HOLDINGS, LLC 

APPLICANT WOODIE ENTERPRISES/ BRAD WOODIE 

LOCATION 9107 LAWYERS ROAD 

TAX PARCEL NUMBER 109-331-07 

REQUEST EXISTING BUILDING -REUSE FOR AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR SHOP 

 

 

 APPLICATION SUMMARY: 

 

The applicant is seeking approval to open an automotive repair shop in the former Rite Aid building. The current zoning, 

B-P (CD), does not allow the use. The applicant requests to rezone the property from B-P (CD) to B-G (CD) in order to 

allow the use. The apparent exterior change to the building is the addition of a garage door (see attached elevation). No 

other changes to the site are proposed.  

 

Automobile 
Repair 
Shop 

A commercial establishment whose primary purpose involves the maintenance and servicing of 
vehicles. "Auto body work" (i.e., work normally associated with an "automobile body shop,") may 

not be performed on premises unless the zoning district in which the use is located allows an 
"automobile body shop." The sale of automotive fuels and accessory automobile parts to the 

public may be provided on an accessory basis. Notwithstanding, an "automobile repair shop" is 
differentiated from an "auto parts store" in that the sale of automotive parts is not the primary 

service being offered. 

 

Conditional District decisions shall be made in consideration of identified relevant adopted land use plan. Conditional 

District rezoning is a legislative procedure under which the Board of Commissioners has the authority to increase, tighten, 

add, vary, modify or waive specific conditions or standards.  In approving a petition for the rezoning of property to a 

Conditional District the Board of Commissioners may request reasonable and appropriate conditions. 

 

 PLAN CONSISTENCY: 

 

The Land Use Plan recommends commercial use for the property. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Favorable recommendation 

 

 

 

 

 



PROJECT

DATE

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

1946

3 OCT 19

LPC

CMW

PROPOSED
ELEVATIONS

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Rectangle

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Polygon

Charley
Rectangle



Planning Staff 

704-545-9726 

 

 

   STAFF REPORT 
 

  

CASE:  ZC19-6 

EXISTING ZONING I-G (CD) 

PROPOSED ZONING I-G (CD)  

PROPERTY OWNER: ALBEMARLE ROAD ASSOCIATES, LLC 

APPLICANT ALBEMARLE ROAD ASSOCIATES, LLC 

LOCATION CLEAR CREEK BUSINESS PARK 

TAX PARCEL NUMBERS 137-151-25, 137-151-27, 137-152-11, 137-152-54, 137-152-13, 

137-152-18, 137-152-12, 137-152-01  

REQUEST: AMEND CONDITIONS 

RECOMMENDATION: FAVORABLE 

 

 

 BACKGROUND: 

 

In 2012 Clear Creek Business Park was divided into Part A and Part B (see attached map). Part A retained the original 

conditions established for Clear Creek plus a requirement for Conditional Zoning to apply to the remaining parcels within 

Part A. Part B was approved with a list of general standards and allowable uses, all of which would be administratively 

reviewed and approved.  

 

On June 14, 2018 the Board of Commissioners approved a list of by-right uses for Clear Creek Part A. The approval 

included removal of a condition pertaining to the timing of the street acceptance; removal of the restriction on retail sales 

and services and eating establishments, and a condition was added to allow parking areas to extend into the 50’ front 

setback up to 25’.   

 

APPLICATION SUMMARY: 

 

• Add Machine, Metal and Woodworking Shop, Manufacturing, Processing and Fabrication to the list of by-rights 

uses  

• Amend condition regarding building materials to read, “The Front façade shall be constructed of masonry, brick, 

stone, precast concrete panels, glass and/or tilt wall concrete panels. In addition, all buildings visible from the 

street shall be masonry, brick, stone, precast concrete panels, glass and/or tilt wall concrete panels.” 

 

Conditional District decisions shall be made in consideration of identified relevant adopted land use plan. Conditional 

District rezoning is a legislative procedure under which the Board of Commissioners has the authority to increase, tighten, 

add, vary, modify or waive specific conditions or standards.  In approving a petition for the rezoning of property to a 

Conditional District the Board of Commissioners may request reasonable and appropriate conditions. 

 

MEETING DATES:  

 

PLANNING BOARD  MONDAY, OCTOBER 21 

PUBLIC HEARING THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 14 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 14 

 

 

 

 



§̈¦Outer
485

§̈¦Inner
485

Truelight Church RdTruelight Church Rd

Truelight Church Rd
Truelight Church Rd

Bla
ir R

d
Bla

ir R
d

Bla
ir R

d
Bla

ir R
d

Connell Rd

Connell Rd

Conn
ell 

Rd

Conn
ell 

Rd

Allen Station Dr

Allen Station Dr

Allen Station Dr

Allen Station Dr

Norfolk Southern RailwayNorfolk Southern Railway

Albemarle RdAlbemarle Rd
¬«24

¬«27

Rocky River Church Rd
Rocky River Church Rd

CCll
eeaa

rrCC
rr ee ee

kk CC
oomm

mm ee
rr ccee

DD rr
1371521113715211

1371521213715212

Part APart A

Part BPart B
1371531013715310

GRAYGRAY
RR

1371411313714113
HILLHILL

RR

1371531113715311
GRAYGRAY

RR

1371510413715104
WOODWOOD

RR

1371520413715204
WOODROW M ALLENWOODROW M ALLEN

FAMILY PROP IFAMILY PROP I
RR

1371520513715205
WATSONWATSON

RR

1371510213715102
BIGGERSBIGGERS

RR

1371511513715115
SMITHSMITH

RR

13715122

13715122
SOUDER

SOUDER

PROPERTIES INC

PROPERTIES INC
RR

1371510113715101
GOSPELGOSPEL
LIGHTRLIGHTR
BAPTISTBAPTIST
CHURCHCHURCH

RR

1371511813715118
SOUDERSOUDER

PROPERTIES INCPROPERTIES INC
I-G(CUD)I-G(CUD)

1371520313715203
ALLENALLEN

B-GB-G

1371530913715309
THOMPSONTHOMPSON

B-GB-G

1371531313715313
GRIFFIN LANDGRIFFIN LAND
HOLDING LLCHOLDING LLC

I-G(CUD)I-G(CUD)

1371531213715312
EFIRDEFIRD

I-G(CUD)I-G(CUD)

13
71

52
02

13
71

52
02

AL
BE

MA
RL

E R
OA

D
AL

BE
MA

RL
E R

OA
D

AS
SO

CI
AT

ES
 LL

C
AS

SO
CI

AT
ES

 LL
C

B-
G

B-
G

1373115613731156
CHARLOTTE-MECKLENBURGCHARLOTTE-MECKLENBURG

HOSPITALHOSPITAL
I-G(CUD)I-G(CUD)

1373115813731158
CHARLOTTE-MECKLENBURGCHARLOTTE-MECKLENBURG

BOARDBOARD
II

1371525513715255
HILLCO LTDHILLCO LTD

I-G(CUD)I-G(CUD)

1390910113909101
BROOKSBROOKS

1371521113715211
ALBEMARLE ROADALBEMARLE ROAD
ASSOCIATES LLCASSOCIATES LLC

I-G(CUD)I-G(CUD)

1371521113715211
ALBEMARLE ROADALBEMARLE ROAD
ASSOCIATES LLCASSOCIATES LLC

I-G(CUD)I-G(CUD)

1371512513715125

1371523913715239

1371521913715219

1371525313715253

1371520113715201

1371521113715211

1371512713715127
1371521213715212

1371522113715221

1371521013715210

1371522013715220

1371525413715254

1371521813715218



Part A Conditions:  

1. All outdoor storage will be limited to the side or rear of the building and will be screened with a 

vegetative buffer, masonry walls or solid fences or chain linked fences (if chain link fences are 

installed, vegetation must be provided, and the fence shall be dark color to blend with the 

landscaping)  

2. Street trees along Albemarle Road and Blair Road should be minimum of 4” caliper and 20-25 

feet in height at time of planting. 

3. The front facades shall be constructed of masonry or brick material. In addition, all buildings 

visible from the street shall be masonry or brick on side and rear  

4. Access to all lots shall be from interior streets only  

5. Bus stations, power generating or transmission facilities, radio, telephone masts, towers or 

similar structures, telephone repeater stations, blacksmiths, armories, bulk storage of 

flammable liquids and gases, and truck terminals shall be prohibited uses  

6. Installation of sidewalks within development shall be bonded to insure installation upon 

development/construction of site. 

7. Parking is permitted to encroach up to 25’ into the 50’ front setback 

 

*Last updated at the 6/14/18 Board of Commissioners meeting 

 



jhoard
Typewritten Text
ZC19-6

jhoard
Typewritten Text
10/10/19

jhoard
Typewritten Text
JH
















	10.21.19 Agenda.pdf
	9-16-19 Minutes.pdf
	S19-18.pdf
	ZC19-4.pdf
	ZC19-5.pdf
	ZC19-6.pdf

